ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 10, 2016
3:31 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Cathy G essel

Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Berta Gardner

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l menbers present
COMWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 190
"An Act relating to an exenption from the regulation of
post secondary educational institutions."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 76
"An Act relating to the Governor's Council on Disabilities and
Speci al Education.”

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE BILL NO 191

"An Act relating to disciplinary sanctions inposed by the State
Medi cal Board; restricting enployees and representatives of
abortion services providers, and affiliates of abortion services
providers, from delivering instruction or distributing materials
in public schools and providing civil penalties for violations;
relating to revocation or suspension of teacher certificates;
relating to the receipt of state funds by teachers and school
board nenbers; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 190

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- March 10, 2016



SHORT TI TLE: EXEMPTI ON FROM POST- SECONDARY ED REGS

SPONSOR( s) :

02/ 22/ 16
02/ 22/ 16
03/ 08/ 16
03/ 08/ 16
03/ 10/ 16

BILL: HB 76

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

SENATOR(s) MOGUI RE

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
EDC, L&C

EDC AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

-- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

EDC AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

SHORT TI TLE: GOV COUNCI L ON DI SABI LI TI ES/ SPECI AL ED

SPONSOR( s) :

01/ 23/ 15
01/ 23/ 15
03/ 03/ 15
03/ 03/ 15
03/ 03/ 15
03/ 05/ 15
03/ 05/ 15
03/ 05/ 15
03/ 06/ 15
03/ 06/ 15

04/ 10/ 15
04/ 10/ 15
04/ 11/ 15
04/ 11/ 15
01/ 25/ 16
01/ 25/ 16
01/ 25/ 16
01/ 27/ 16
01/ 27/ 16
01/ 27/ 16
01/ 29/ 16
01/ 29/ 16
01/ 29/ 16
03/ 08/ 16
03/ 08/ 16
03/ 10/ 16

BILL: SB 191

LI TIIITIIIIIT

NN AN NN

QLLLY

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

REPRESENTATI VE(s) M LLETT

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HSS

HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HSS)

HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Moved HB 76 Qut of Committee
M NUTE( HSS)
HSS RPT 5DP
DP: TARR,
SEATON
TRANSM TTED TO (S)

VERSI ON: HB 76

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HSS, EDC

HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HSS)

HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved HB 76 Qut of Conmmttee

M NUTE( HSS)

HSS RPT 4DP 1NR

VAZQUEZ, TALERI CO,

DP: STOLTZE, G ESSEL, ELLIS, KELLY

NR: STEDVAN

EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
-- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

SHORT TITLE: LIMT ABORTI ON SERV. PROVI DERS I N SCHOOLS

SPONSOR( S)

02/ 22/ 16
02/ 22/ 16

SENATE EDC COW TTEE

(S)
(S)

SENATOR(s) DUNLEAVY

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
EDC, JUD

-2- March 10, 2016



03/ 01/ 16 (S) EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 01/ 16 (S <Above |Item Renoved from Agenda>
03/ 01/ 16 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 03/ 16 (S) EDC AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 03/ 16 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 03/ 16 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 10/ 16 (S) EDC AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

TREVOR GUTI ERREZ, St aff

Senator Lesil MQGQiire

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced SB 190.

DI ANE BLUVER, St aff

Senator Lesil MGuire

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 190.

BARBARA DOBBERTHI EN, Executive Director

Yoga Al liance

Arlington, Virginia

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 190.

JODEE DI XON, Owner

The Yoga Path

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 190.

GRACE ABBOIT, Staff

Representative Charisse MIllett

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Introduced HB 76 on behal f of the sponsor.

PATRI CK REI NHART, St aff

Governor's Council on Disabilities and Special Education
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented informati on on HB 76.

CHRI STI E REI NHARDT, St af f

Governor's Council on Disabilities and Special Education
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on HB 76.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- March 10, 2016



CORY CROSSETT, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 191.

STACY LAMASCUS, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 191.

LAURA POVNERS, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 191.

DEANNA HOBBS, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 191.

KORBYN POVERS, St udent

Uni versity of Al aska- Sout heast

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 191.

REBECCA M LLER, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 191.

RAVENCLOUD HALL, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 191.

KYLER ROMVE, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 191.

KEVI N ALLEN, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 191.

SELMA HOUCK, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 191.

SI D HElI DERSDORF, Menber

Al askans for Life

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 191.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- March 10, 2016



ALYSON CURREY, Representative

Pl anned Par ent hood Votes Northwest and Hawai i

Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

CHRI STINE NI EM, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

ROBYN STEVENS, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

JANE ANDREEN, Al aska Wnen's Lobby
Dougl as, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

KATEY BLAGDEN, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

JOHN SONI'N, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

LI SA EAGAN LAGERQUI ST, representing herself
Dougl as, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

ZHEVI A PETERSON, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

KAI TLYN ROBERTS, representing herself
Eagl e River, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

HENRY SCHI LDBACH, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

JOSHUA MASTERSQN, representing hinself
Eagl e River, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

MO RA PYHALA, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5-

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

191.

191.

191.

191.

191.

191.

191.

191.

191.

191.

191.

March 10, 2016



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

NATHAN CARRAVAY, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

JOHN BROWN, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

KARYN WARNER, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

KIRA HAM LTON, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

AWM E TREMBLAY, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

ROBIN SM TH, representing hersel f
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

CAROLI NE AHREBS, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

KYLI E CLARK, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

KENNI LI NDEN, representing herself
Pal mer, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

JOANIE WLM representing herself

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi
ENZI NA MARARI, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

MARCI HAVWKI NS, representing herself

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6-

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

191.

191.

191.

191.

191.

191.

191.

191.

191.

191.

191.

191.

March 10, 2016



Sutton, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

KIM SM TH, representing herself
Hormer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

CAROLYN CLI FT, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

CATRI ONA REYNOLDS, Director

Kachemak Bay Fam |y Planning dinic
Hormer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

MARY LOU KELSEY, Nurse Practitioner

Homer Medi cal Center

Homer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

HEATHER O CONNCR, Director

Kachemak Bay Fam |y Planning dinic
Hormer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

SAMANTHA SAVACGE, representing herself
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

TAMARA ROSELI US, representing herself
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

ED GRAY, representing hinself
Sitka, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

JULI E STRCEMER, representing herself
Sitka, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support
JAYSON CHRI STNER, representing herself
Sitka, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

JOSHUA DECKER, Executive Director

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7-

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

SB

SB

SB

SB 191.

SB 191.

SB 191.

SB 191.

SB 191.

SB 191.

SB 191.

SB 191.

191.

191.

191.

March 10, 2016



American G vil Liberties Union of Al aska
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 191.

HELEN CRAI G representing herself
Sitka, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 191.

Cl NDY MOCRE, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 191.

BUTCH MOORE, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 191.

PAMELA SANVASH, Menber

Right to Life

Nenana, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 191.

DEBORAH POTTER, representing herself
Skagway, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 191.

DOROTHY MCA LVARY, representing herself
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 191.

EM LY KOSTI NA, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 191.

STAN BLUETTE, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 191.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:31:44 PM

CHAIR MKE DUNLEAVY called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:31 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Gessel, Stevens, Huggins, and Chair
Dunl eavy. Senator Gardner arrived shortly thereafter.

SB 190- EXEMPTI ON FROM POST- SECONDARY ED REGS

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- March 10, 2016



3:32: 29 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced the consideration of SB 190. He noted
there is zero fiscal note.

TREVOR QUTI ERREZ, Staff, Senator Lesil M@ire, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, introduced SB 190.

DI ANE BLUMER, Staff, Senator Lesil McGuire, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, answered questions related to SB 190.

MR. GUTI ERREZ read his prepared statenent:

SB 190 will exenpt prograns that offer a certificate
of conpletion when the field of study does not require
a professional or occupational |icense under Al aska
Law. Sone may wonder why, in this tinme of budget

crisis, we are addressing an issue such as this,
however, this issue is a perfect exanple of governnent
overreach and reaching directly into the pockets of
smal | busi ness owners.

A specific exanple is one of yoga teachers or studios
who are not required to have a professional or
occupational license under Al aska Law. Until recently,
yoga studios and teacher training prograns have been
free of state regulation or oversite- now they are
being subject to ACPE regulation sinply because they
use the terns “yoga teacher training” and are awarded
a “certificate” at the conpletion of the course. The
use of these ternms subject these small business owners
to a registration fee in the amount of $2,500.

This fee does not provide one with educational credit,
no funding is available through ACPE, and there are no
m nimum state standards for yoga studios or yoga
teachers. In fact, this hefty fee is assessed sinply
because a person has met the Yoga Alliance’ s m nimm
requi renents for teaching and has conpleted a program
at a school that is registered with Yoga Al liance. |
am not sure how many of you have attended yoga cl asses
but it would take many sessions just to recover this
burdensone fee that provides no benefit - other than
your name on a registry.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY noted the arrival of Senator Gardner.

3:35:19 PM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -9- March 10, 2016



SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if the bill states that the Al aska
Comm ssi on on Postsecondary Education (ACPE) fee will be waived
for yoga studi os.

MR. GUTI ERREZ sai d yes.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if other programs would qualify for this
wai ver .

M5. BLUVER said there are not nmany prograns that would, but
ball room dancing or karate prograns that issue instructor
certifications mght be included.

3:36: 34 PM
SENATOR HUGA NS asked if there has been any opposition to the
bill.

M5. BLUMER said they received a letter from Postsecondary
Education that said the bill may be a little broad.

SENATOR STEVENS asked Postsecondary Education to coment at a
later tine.

3:37:28 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY opened public testinony.

3:37:46 PM

BARBARA  DOBBERTHI EN, Executi ve Director, Yoga Alliance,
testified in support of SB 190. She explained that Yoga Alliance
is an international organization representing nearly 80,000
smal | businesses and individuals in the yoga industry, of which
233 are in Al aska.

3:38: 21 PM
SENATOR GARDNER asked if her business is unique or if there are
other simlar yoga organizations.

MS. DOBBERTHI EN said she has not found other simlar businesses
t hat do advocacy work on behal f of the profession.

3:39: 00 PM

JODEE DI XON, Owmner, The Yoga Path, testified in support of SB
190. She described the process of becomng a nenber of Yoga
Alliance. She related that she provides classes and trains
people in yoga who can now teach yoga. She stressed the
i mportance of high quality teachers and the oversight by Yoga
Al'liance regulations. She said one benefit of SB 190 is for the

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- March 10, 2016



protection for yoga businesses. She concluded that the bil
woul d hel p grow the yoga community.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if her program takes |onger than 120
hour s.

M5. DI XON said the programis 200 hours or nore.

3:43: 34 PM

SENATOR GARDNER t hanked Ms. Dixon for her professionalism She
inquired if her programis a formof post-secondary education.

M5. DI XON understood that the difference is that the yoga
teacher certificate does not provide the opportunity for a

career.

SENATOR STEVENS spoke of an exenption for avocational prograns.
He thought the yoga profession fit under that exenption.

M5. DI XON agreed, but clarified that her program is over 120
hours and practitioners receive a certificate of conpletion.

SENATOR STEVENS suggest ed addi ng "yoga cl asses” to the |ist.
M5. DI XON agr eed.
SENATOR HUGGE NS shared a story about a staffer who |ikes yoga.

3:46:51 PM
SENATOR STEVENS sai d he takes yoga class and enjoys it.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY held SB 190 in comm ttee.

3:47: 36 PM
At ease

HB 76- GOV _COUNCI L ON DI SABI LI TI ES/ SPECI AL _ED

3:48: 29 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced the consideration of HB 76. He said it
has a zero fiscal note.

GRACE ABBOTT, Staff, Representative Charisse Mllett, Al aska

State Legislature, introduced HB 76 on behalf of the sponsor
She read the sponsor statenent:

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- March 10, 2016



The m ssion of the Governor’'s Council on Disabilities

and Special Education is to, “[create] change that
inproves the lives of Alaskans wth disabilities”.
Since 1978, the Council has provided a constructive

process t hat has connect ed t he public with
policymakers to ensure the thoughtful devel opnent of
an efficient and seanl ess service delivery system that
neets the needs of individuals wth disabilities
across their life spans.

However, within their enabling statutes, the State of
Alaska also included “gifted” persons anong the

individuals that the Council need work for and
support. The Council believes the term “gifted” to be
confusing and ill-fitting within the scope of their
ainms and objectives. Furt her nor e, they Dbelieve

“gifted” should be renoved for the foll ow ng reasons:

Exceptionality is not a disability that entitles
students to special education. Gfted education is a
regul ar education program over which the Council has
no oversight.

Gfted children are not eligible for additiona
services wunder the Individuals wth Disabilities
Educati on Act (1 DEA) or t he Anmeri cans W th
Disabilities Act (ADA), policies whose adherence is
requi red per the Council’s responsibilities.

Neither federal nor state law provide for special
enpl oynment benefits, or special avenues through which
to advocate for enploynment for those classified as

gi fted.
The Governor’s Council works tirelessly to advocate
for and access housing, enpl oynent , i ndependent

living, health, transportation and comunity i nclusion
for Alaskans wth disabilities. Renmoving the word
“gifted” from their enabling statutes allows Al aska
law to be updat ed W th t he nost accurate
representation of the mssion and work of the Council,
as well as provide future Council nenbership with a
cl ear roadmap for success.

3:51: 03 PM
MS. ABBOTT presented the bill sectional:

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- March 10, 2016



Section One: Renoves the word “gifted” from the
Governor’s counci | on disabilities and speci al
education’s enabling statute.

Section Two: Renoves reference to gifted persons in
the council’s list of statutory responsibilities and
updates references to reflect current u. S | aw
regarding state councils on devel opnental disabilities
and desi gnated state agenci es.

3:51: 39 PM
SENATOR GARDNER asked if there has been any opposition to the
bill.

V5. ABBOTT sai d no.
SENATOR GARDNER asked if it is a clean-up bill

MS. ABBOIT said yes. She explained that the Governor's Counci
of Disabilities and Special Education has been around since 1978
and their advocacy has been strong and consistent for disabled
Al askans. School districts have taken the |l ead on the education
and qualification of gifted students.

3:52:36 PM

PATRI CK REI NHART, Staff, Governor's Council on Disabilities and
Speci al Education, presented information on HB 76. He agreed the
bill is a clean-up of their enabling statute.

CHRI STI E REI NHARDT, Staff, Governor's Council on Disabilities
and Special Education, presented information on HB 76. She
expl ai ned that when the council was created in 1978, the [|aw
that covered special education was the Handicapped Children
Education Act and it addressed gifted education. Current |[aw,
the Individuals with Disability Education Act, does not include
gifted education. It has created confusion for sonme parents
| ooki ng for advocacy for inprovenent of gifted education within
school districts. She pointed out that gifted education is the
responsibility of |local school districts as part of general
education. There is no special funding at the state or federal
level for gifted education and it does not fall wunder the
purvi ew of the council.

3:55: 09 PM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -13- March 10, 2016



SENATOR GARDNER understood that gifted education does not fall
under the Governor's Council on Disabilities and Special
Educat i on.

M5. RElI NHARDT sai d yes.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY opened public testinony. He held HB 76 in
conmittee.

3:55:49 PM
At ease

SB 191-LIM T ABORTI ON SERV. PROVI DERS | N SCHOCLS

3:57: 33 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced that the final bill wll be SB 191,
whi ch was i ntroduced | ast week.

3:58:12 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY opened public testinony.

3:58: 26 PM

CORY CROSSETT, representing hinself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. He said he is a teacher in the Juneau School District.
He related that for the l|last couple of years students in the
district have been getting accurate information about persona
hygi ene and reproductive health from a representative of Planned
Parent hood. He noted the feedback he received from parents and
students was positive.

He summarized that the purpose of the bill is to keep abortion
services providers from indoctrinating students. He countered
that the only agenda he ever saw from Pl anned Parenthood was to
provide accurate information. The alternative 1is ignorance,
hearsay, and the risk of pregnancy and STD s. He pointed out
that parents are informed ahead of time about the class and have
the opportunity for their student to opt out of it. He concluded
that it is irresponsible to deprive children of the facts they
need to know and it is fiscally irresponsible, as well.

4:00:45 PM
SENATOR STEVENS asked how a parent woul d opt out.

MR. CROSSETT explained that parents are inforned of the topic

and format and then they are given the opportunity to state in
witing that they do not want their child to participate.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -14- March 10, 2016



4:01: 26 PM
At ease

4:01:43 PM
VI CE CHAIR HUGA NS t ook over the neeting.

SENATOR GARDNER asked how Pl anned Parenthood receives approval
by the school or the district for the curricul um

MR. CROSSETT explained that the curriculum presented to his
students came from King County in Washi ngton State

SENATOR GARDNER asked if it was Pl anned Parent hood curri cul um

MR. CROSSETT said it wasn't; it was prepared by King County
School District.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if he used the services of the Planned
Par ent hood trai ner.

MR. CROSSETT sai d yes.

4:03:18 PM

STACY LANMASCUS, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She said she and M. Crossett both teach grades 4 - 6.
She noted the large nunber of teenagers present today to
represent their experiences wth reproductive health classes
wi th Planned Parenthood. She pointed out that SB 191 would al so
i npact students in elenentary grades. She explained how she
attained the curriculum and how she chose which parts to use in
conjunction wth a trainer from Planned Parenthood. The
curriculum did not include sex education, but rather positive
body i nage, personal health and hygiene, and a little on healthy
rel ati onships. She stressed that the class is the foundation for
heal t hy sexual relationships in the future.

4:05:24 PM

LAURA POVERS, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She spoke as a hone school parent for the past 15 years.
She chose the Planned Parenthood curriculum because it provides

unbi ased, nedically accurate information. She said the bill is
bi ased. Pro-life, fai t h- based curriculum teaches bi ased
information using scare tactics in hopes of pronoti ng

abstinence. It is also not inclusive of all comunities; whereas
Pl anned Parenthood includes information regardless of age, race,
sexual preferences, and religion. She shared statistics about

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 15- March 10, 2016



the lack of information regarding contraception for sexually
active teens.

4:07:26 PM

SENATOR STEVENS thought the concern being raised was whether
Pl anned Parent hood teaches abortion. He asked if any part of the
training dealt with abortion

M5. POMNERS said they cover it, but the focus is on sex
education. She stated that only 2 percent to 3 percent of
Pl anned Parent hood services relate to abortion and 97 percent to
98 percent is sex education.

SENATOR GARDNER asked how ol d her daughters are.
M5. POVERS said 17 and 20.

4:08: 37 PM

DEANNA HOBBS, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She said she is a senior at Thunder Muntain High
School . She spoke as a peer educator for Teen Council, a program
t hrough Pl anned Parenthood where teens wllingly come together
to learn about topics on healthy sexuality and how to be good
educators in health classes. She pointed out that SB 191 would
destroy the relationship Teen Council has made with the school
district.

She noted that she helped round up students to testify today
fromall three high schools and all four grades. She said it is
not for extra credit. She concluded teachers and students feel
that health education in the schools is very inportant.

4:10: 53 PM
SENATOR GARDNER asked about Teen Council subjects in addition to
consent and heal t hy boundari es.

DEANNA HOBBS added heal t hy rel ati onshi ps.

SENATOR GARDNER asked whether they teach sex education or
bi ol ogy.

DEANNA HOBBS said they do not specifically address anatony or
sex education. She noted she considers consent and healthy
boundari es sex education. She related that Teen Council attended
a youth conference in Anchorage which included reproduction,
anat ony, and physi ol ogy.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -16- March 10, 2016



4:12: 03 PM

KORBYN  POVERS, St udent , Uni versity of Al aska- Sout heast,
testified in opposition to SB 191. She maintained that students
who are not informed about sex education cannot properly protect
t henselves. If <children in school do not receive nedically
accurate information, they will have to ask their parents, which
can be awkward, inaccurate, and inconplete. The goal is to have
the next generation be healthy and happy and have the right
tools and know edge to have successful and healthy I|ives.

SENATOR STEVENS noted the issue is political and is about
abortion. He asked if Planned Parenthood is an avenue to teach
abortion and if it is a large part of the curricul um

M5. POVERS opined that it isn't any part of what goes on in the
classroom with Pl anned Parenthood. Abortion stays in the back of
peopl e's m nds.

4:13:50 PM

REBECCA M LLER, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She said she is a senior at Thunder Muntain High
School. She stated that |ocal communities should have the right
to invite trusted partners |ike Planned Parenthood into the
cl assroom because students need nedically accurate, unbiased,
evi dence- based sexual health education. She shared statistics
from the Centers for D sease Control about the high rates of
chlanydia in Alaska and its costs. She said Planned Parenthood
teaches awareness of, and how to treat, STl's. She shared
stories about nyths learned in a poor sexual education class.

4:16: 31 PM

RAVENCLOUD HALL, representing herself, testified in opposition
to SB 191. She said she is a senior at Thunder Muntain H gh
School. She viewed sex education as a necessity for a healthy
lifestyle and without it, teens and young adults are at risk for
unheal t hy behavior. The bill does not protect Al aska's youth and
it limts access to necessary health information. Schools should
be able to decide what they think is best for their students.
Teachers and healthcare providers should not be penalized for
education that mnakes a comunity healthier. SB 191 would
negati vely affect Al aska students.

4:17:49 PM

KYLER ROMVE, representing hinmself, testified in opposition to SB
191. He said he is a senior at Thunder Muntain H gh School. He
said the bill openly attacks qualified sexual educat i on
providers and keeps them from teaching in schools. It also

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -17- March 10, 2016



limts access to inportant information that increases healthy
deci sion making anbng Juneau youth. He shared his experience
about getting inclusive, conprehensive sex education through
Teen Council and its Planned Parenthood facilitator.

He shared statistics about the high level of STI's in Al aska. He
said the state is obligated to teach students to be as safe,
smart, and as healthy as possible.

4:19: 58 PM

KEVI N ALLEN, representing hinmself, testified in opposition to SB
191. He said he is Thunder Mountain's student representative to
the Juneau School Board. He noted that the legislature goes to
outside experts for information, simlar to how Planned
Par ent hood provides sexual education expertise to schools. He
took issue with the point that Planned Parenthood is banned from
schools; it is a free service and offers a wde range of
educational material.

SENATOR STEVENS asked what the district would do to provide sex
education if they couldn't use Pl anned Parenthood.

MR. ALLEN wasn't sure, but thought that someone shoul d suggest
that the district's sex education curriculum be reforned to
reflect current tines.

SENATOR STEVENS questioned who prohibits Planned Parenthood from
providing material s.

MR. ALLEN said the provisions in SB 191 do, not the Juneau
School Boar d.

4:24: 05 PM

SELMA HOUCK, representing herself, testified in opposition to SB
191. She said she is a sophonore at Juneau Douglas H gh Schoo

and a survivor of sexual assault. She shared statistics about
the nunber of youth who are sexually assaulted in the U S. and
in Alaska. She said when her incidences happened there were no
adults who were educated on how to help the victinms, but today
or gani zati ons like Planned Parenthood can educate this
generation. Teen Council is a program of Planned Parenthood that
provides a resource to help student who experience sexual
assaul t.

SENATOR GARDNER t hanked her for her testinony.

4:26:41 PM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 18- March 10, 2016



SI D HEl DERSDORF, Menber, Al askans for Life, testified in support
of SB 191. He said banning Planned Parenthood w Il protect
children from a philosophy regarding sexual promscuity and
abortion that underm nes parents. The controversy is not whether
sex education is good or bad, it is because Planned Parenthood
pronotes sexual promscuity and is the largest abortion provider
in the country. He shared horror stories about harvesting baby
parts. He concluded that Planned Parenthood is not welcone in
school s.

4:30: 24 PM

ALYSON  CURREY, Representati ve, Pl anned Par ent hood Vot es
Nort hwest and Hawaii, testified in opposition to SB 191. She
di sputed several statenents nmade in the bill regarding their

education progranms and sonme statenments heard in the room today.
She stated that when Planned Parenthood 1is invited into
cl assroons they are not there as representatives of a business
and they do not recruit patients. Planned Parenthood delivers
health care in their clinics and education in the classroom She

stressed that education includes learning skills like healthy
deci si on maki ng - heal t h, r epr oducti on, consent, and
relationships - to prepare students for the real world. Their

education prograns conplinment the conversations that are
happeni ng at home and do not replace parents.

It has been suggested that Planned Parenthood curriculum is
based on val ues, not science. She «clarified that their
curricul um uses evidence-based information from highly qualified
sources, such as the Centers for D sease Control, the Myo
Clinic, and the national network of HV and STD Prevention
Training Centers. She noted their curriculum is vetted and
approved by the Ofice of Adol escent Health for medical accuracy
and is reviewed by local school staff for curriculum alignnent,
as well as for age and cultural appropriateness to fit the needs
of each conmunity.

M5. CURREY enphasi zed that Planned Parenthood pronotes respect,
inclusivity, and tolerance grounded in a values neutral
approach. They absolutely do not teach abortion curriculum in
school s.

She said it is disappointing that this body would threaten the
livelihood of teachers and health care providers, as well as
student access to quality education, in order to score political
points Dbecause of its objection to abortion, a safe and
constitutionally protected procedure. She requested the sponsor

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -19- March 10, 2016



focus on solving real problenms in the state rather than creating
t hem

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said his notivation is not to score political
points. He said there are a nunber of folks in Al aska that have
an issue with what is occurring.

4:33: 44 PM

CHRISTINE NIEM, representing herself, testified in opposition
to SB 191. She addressed Senator Steven's question about whether
Pl anned Parenthood' s curriculum includes abortion. She answered
by referring to an article on March 6 in the Juneau Enpire that
says Pl anned Parenthood does not nention abortion in its |essons
or discussion and it is not part of the district's health
curriculum It encourages students to talk to a trusted adult or
parent. She maintained that sex education should be left up to
the local community to decide and parents should be able to opt
out, not opt in. She stated that it is not ok to threaten people
about losing their jobs and |icenses.

4:36:49 PM

ROBYN STEVENS, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She countered Senator G essel's statement that parents
could take their kids to the |ocal Planned Parenthood to receive
sex education. She said in Al aska many people cannot drive to a
| ocal Planned Parenthood. She said all students should be able
to get conprehensive reproductive information. She disagreed
w th Senator Dunleavy's statenent that abortion providers are in
the business to recruit students for potential clients. She said
it was a lie and does not have any part in the legislative
process. She opined that in banning qualified, well-trained
sexual health educators |ike Planned Parenthood from school s,
the legislature is squandering their responsibility to Al askan
st udent s.

4:38: 47 PM

JANE ANDREEN, Al aska Wnen's Lobby, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She said all children should be |oved and should have
good accurate information in order to make good decisions. She
recall ed her inadequate sex education experience. She noted how
much nore dangerous sexual activity is today than it was 40-pl us
years ago. Kids today have to know how to protect thensel ves.

4: 40: 44 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if that could be taught by the schools.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 20- March 10, 2016



M5. ANDREWS replied that the issue |, "W is best prepared -
who are the experts who best know how to do this?" She thought
sonme teachers could do it, but they are not found in every
school

4:41: 42 PM

KATEY BLAGDEN, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She said she works in Early Childhood Education wth
famlies who have experienced sexual abuse and assault, of which
Al aska has sone of the highest rates. She related that Pl anned
Parent hood provides quality education to help prevent these
i ncidences by teaching youth to be safe, respectful, and
responsi bl e sexually. She suggested focusing on solutions and
steps forward on nmaki ng Al aska a heal thier place.

4:43: 31 PM

JOHN SONIN, representing hinself, testified in opposition to SB
191. He said that Planned Parenthood is not state funded. He
said SB 191 woul d take away fromthe quality of life in Al aska.

4:46: 28 PM
LI SA EAGAN LACERQUI ST, representing herself, testified in
opposition to SB 191. She said the bill is crazy and she is

appalled at wasting time on it. She said as a parent she
facility Planned Parenthood to cone to Gastineau Elenentary
School to talk to parents about how to talk to their kids about
healthy relationships. She wondered how nany commttee nenbers
had heard a Planned Parenthood presentation. She shared her
experience as a teacher and the nunmber of student pregnancies
t hat happened during high school. She concluded that students
are going to be sexually active and they need to be prepared.

4:48: 51 PM

ZHEVI A PETERSON, representing herself, testified in opposition
to SB 191. She spoke as a student at UAA involved wth
CGeneration Action, a group that focuses on sex education,
pronoting healthy |lives and youth | eadership. She noted that at
the collegiate |evel, students are missing vital information on
sex education and understanding of SDI's. She shared statistics
about STlI's and discussed Planned Parenthood's prevention
services. She concluded that it is unjust and undenocratic to
target teachers and school boards for providing nedically
accurate and age-appropriated information to students. Planned
Parent hood's role is indispensable for students.

SENATOR GARDNER t hanked Ms. Peterson.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -21- March 10, 2016



4:51: 59 PM

KAI TLYN ROBERTS, representing herself, testified in opposition
to SB 191. She said in light of the SDI epidemc, it is a waste
of time trying to prevent Planned Parenthood from educating
students in Alaska. She applauded the former testinony from
students and strongly supported Planned Parenthood's continuing
to provi de conprehensive, scientifically accurate sex education.

4:53: 05 PM

HENRY SCHI LDBACH, representing hinmself, testified in opposition
to SB 191. He described his role with the Teen Council at
Hi ghl and Tech Charter School. He said the goal of sex education
is prevention and to enable people to lead healthy lives. He
argued for conprehensive sexual education to continue because
Al aska does not have a standardi zed sex education curriculum He
concl uded that Pl anned Parenthood and Teen Council are inportant
and shoul d be conti nued.

4:55: 02 PM

JOSHUA MASTERSON, representing hinself, testified in opposition
to SB 191. He said he is a senior at Hi ghland Tech Charter
School. He said studies show that states that teach abstinence
have sonme of the highest rates of teen pregnancies. This
standard should not be used in Al aska. Al aska has a high rate of
chl anydia and teen pregnancies and SB 191 will nake it worse
The bill will not do anything productive.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY pointed out that the bill does not prevent sex
education in school s.

4.:57:32 PM

MO RA PYHALA, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She said she is a college student and a nenber of
Generation Action at UAA. She shared her experience of not being
able to have sex education in Soldotna, an area that has one of
the highest rates of STI's in the state. She said Planned
Parent hood was the only resource available to her. She said to
put the safety of youth and their teachers over this
unreasonabl e bill. She concluded that a student's access to sex
education is a conversation that should be held between their
teachers and their health care providers, not their politicians.

4:58: 54 PM

NATHAN CARRAVAY, representing hinmself, testified in opposition
to SB 191. He said he attends Hi ghland Tech Charter School. He
t hought the $5,000 fine against teachers and districts was too
harsh. He did not agree wth the description of Planned

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -22- March 10, 2016



Parenthood - "abortion service provider." He countered that
Pl anned Parenthood are teachers of sexual education and
prevention, a big need in Al aska. He concluded that the bill
will only prevent education about prevention.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said the bill does not prevent sex educati on.

5:01: 08 PM

JOHN BROWN, representing hinself, testified in opposition to SB
191. He shared his experience with lack of access to sexual
education and listed the resource Planned Parenthood provides.
He said the bill is politically notivated and legally
guestionable. He believed individuals have the right to live
their owm lives and make their own decision, and do not want
politicians to nmake decisions for them

5:03: 21 PM

KARYN WARNER, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She said she finds the bill appalling. The bill targets
highly qualified and capable Planned Parenthood from providing
critical education for Alaska' s youth. She spoke as a sexual
assault nurse exam ner and she shared sexual assault, STI, and
teen pregnancy statistics in Al aska. She opined that youth and
the community deserve the trustworthy, quality free education
and support services by Planned Parent hood.

5:04:53 PM

KIRA HAM LTON, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She said she is a junior at Service H gh school. She
cited high rates of STl and sexual abuse statistics as reasons
to be encouraging sex education in schools. She called fining
teachers a sinister part of the bill. She shared her experience
learning from the incredible resources of Planned Parenthood.
She said she is a nenber of Planned Parenthood' s Teen Council
and a resource to her peers. She terned the bill appalling.

5:06: 29 PM

AMM E TREMBLAY, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She shared her role as a teacher in the nursing program
at UAA and as a volunteer for Planned Parenthood. She said the
bill would create a barrier and nakes her an outlaw She felt
strongly that she should have a <choice regarding Planned
Par ent hood and not be restricted from her civic duty. She spoke
as a nom who wants her boys to have conprehensive sex educati on.

5:08: 20 PM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 23- March 10, 2016



ROBIN SMTH, representing herself, testified in opposition to SB
191. She called the bill unconstitutional and was offended that
it slanders Planned Parenthood. She said the state is not doing
its job to provide conprehensive sex education because there is
no state standard curriculum for it. She maintained that kids
| earn about sex from the nedia and the internet. She concl uded
that Planned Parenthood is not encouraging promscuity; it
t eaches options.

5:11: 20 PM
CAROLI NE AHREBS, representing herself, testified in opposition
to SB 191. She said she subs and volunteers in the school. She

said the bill is fiscally irresponsible, pushes a personal
agenda vendetta, and is hyped by personal propaganda. She
suggested that "if you have sat in a class taught by Planned

Parent hood, as | have" you would know what is being taught. She
said Planned Parenthood is professional and conpetent and the
school always has an enployee in the class and there is no free
reign. They do not teach students to have sex so they can have
abortion clientele; they do teach fact-based educati on.

5:14: 50 PM

KYLI E CLARK, representing herself, testified in opposition to SB
191. She suggested nenbers educate thenselves on what Planned
Parent hood offers. She opined that the bill is an inefficient
way to | egislate what goes on in schools.

5:16: 03 PM
KENNI LI NDEN, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She said as a student she sat on the Mat-Su School Board

and on the curriculum council. She then worked as a substitute
teacher. She said SB 191 <creates harnful and unnecessary
boundari es to accessi ng essenti al , conpr ehensi ve, and
scientifically accurate reproductive heal t h educati on.
Curriculum standards already prevent abortion from being
addressed within the classroom The bill is msguided, likely
unconstitutional, and actively undermnes the purview of

teachers and | ocal educators to have | ocal control.

She spoke as a victim of sexual assault and wi shed she had been
able to have health education wth lessons in healthy
rel ati onshi ps and consent. She concluded that parents have the
ability to opt out of any education that does not align wth
their values. She requested the conmttee oppose SB 191.

5:18: 06 PM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 24- March 10, 2016



JOANIE WLM representing herself, testified in opposition to SB

191. She described the bill in unflattering terns. She said it
is a waste of tine when the state is in an economc crisis, and
|l egislators will answer to the public for it. She said the

Education Conmittee has a responsibility to students in Al aska
to provide an adequate education, of which sex education is a
part. She maintained that Planned Parenthood provides a service,
especially to girls who are nore at risk from STD s. The bill
endangers the lives of youth. She opined that, "You don't get to
i npose your religious beliefs on the rest of Al askans."

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said he, nor other nenbers of the comm ttee, have
menti oned religious beliefs.

5:20: 51 PM

ENZI NA MARARI, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She shared that she was a sexual health educator for
Pl anned Parenthood for five years. She related there is no
sexual health education regulation in Alaska. Only eighth-grade
health is required and it contains a chapter on reproduction. It
is entirely up to teachers to decide how nuch sexual education
to provide and from whom She said that teachers are not
provi ding sex education because they are not trained to. She
reported that she was thanked year after year by teachers
because they did not feel qualified to teach sex educati on.

She said in Anchorage schools, parents already have the ability
to opt out of any class; only one parent took that option during
her five years of teaching. She stated abortion is not included
or allowed in the education curriculum The education provided
by Planned Parenthood is peer reviewed and fact-based. She
listed the resources they use and the topics covered. She
di spel l ed nyths surroundi ng Pl anned Parent hood.

5:24:50 PM
CAROLYN CLIFT, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191.

5:25:25 PM
MARCI HAWKI NS, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She said she has five children. She predicted there

would be a lawsuit and the bill is a waste of tinme - the focus
should be on funding schools instead. The bill discrimnates
agai nst teachers, school districts, and affiliates, |ike herself

who plans to get a degree in Early Chil dhood.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -25- March 10, 2016



SENATOR GARDNER asked why she would not be able to be enployed
due to affiliation clauses in the bill.

M5. HAWKINS said there is no definition of "affiliate.”
SENATOR GARDNER asked her to send an email to her office.

5:28:37 PM

KIM SMTH, representing herself, testified in opposition to SB
191. She described her experience as a sex education teacher in
the 90's. She said Homer had a very high rate of teen
pregnancies at the time. Honer has had a rigorous health
education program in schools for over 20 years. Teen pregnancy
rates have dropped trenendously. Youth have had the privilege of
peer educators for fact-base health education for years. Parents
have always had the opt-out choice. This senester peer educators
taught 100 students with only one opt out. Their work focuses on
facts, healthy relationships, STD prevention, and pregnancy
prevention; it is conprehensive and nedically accurate. SB 191
is an affront to teachers and professionals who want to ensure
the health and safety of students. She terned it governnent
i ntrusion and overreach.

5:31: 13 PM

CAROLYN CLIFT, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She said she is a parent and educator and her goal is to
prepare young adults to take individual responsibility for their
own |lives and finances and not depend on the state. She said
there are too many teen pregnancies. The bill is a huge problem
in that it can take away teacher and nedical provider |icenses.
She provided exanples of Jlack of nedical providers. She
concluded it is a lawsuit waiting to happen and it is an
expensive bill.

5:33: 37 PM

CATRI ONA  REYNOLDS, Di rector, Kachemak Bay Famly Planning
Clinic, testified in opposition to SB 191. She shared statistics
regarding a drop in teen pregnancies and how her clients were
hel ped by Planned Parenthood services. She naintained that
Pl anned Parenthood |essons did not cause STD s, but help treat
and prevent them She shared that teachers have expressed that
they are not well-versed in sex education and enbarrassed to
teach reproductive health information. She shared how Pl anned
Par ent hood supported her own chil dren.

5:36:25 PM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 26- March 10, 2016



MARY LOU KELSEY, Nurse Practitioner, Honer Medical Center,
testified in opposition to SB 191. She said the bill is a
m sdirected attenpt to restrict access to quality sex education
in schools. She shared that she has practiced in the Kenai
Peninsula for 35 years. She said she has also volunteered and
taught reproductive health in the mddle school and high schoo

for many years and used Pl anned Parenthood educational naterials
that are factual and wunbiased. She concluded that students
deserve accurate information. She requested that the sponsor not

threaten teachers and consider the potential harmthe bill would
have.
5:38: 07 PM

HEATHER O CONNOR, Director, Kachemak Bay Family Planning dinic,
testified in opposition to SB 191. She said the clinic has been
provi ding health education in schools for over 20 years using an
evi dence- based curriculum She pointed out that teachers are not
confortable talking to their students about sex education. She
shared statistics on STl's. She highlighted the need to open
doors to nore health care providers. She clainmed the bill is
politically notivated and an exanpl e of government overreach

5:40: 15 PM

SAMANTHA SAVAGE, representing herself, testified in opposition
to SB 191. She said she wuld have benefitted by the
conprehensive and nedically accurate sex education services
offered by Planned Parenthood. Schools should be working wth
the nost highly qualified individuals to provide sex education

rat her than threatening doctors and teachers. She concluded that
the bill is harnful

5:41: 46 PM
TAMARA ROSELIUS, representing herself, testified in opposition
to SB 191. She detailed four main problens with the bill. The

penalties are too big and it is unwieldy for schools to question
all teachers and volunteers about their associations. It is a
violation of freedom of association. Secondly, there is no
evi dence or data of Planned Parenthood indoctrination. Thirdly,
teachers should focus on their jobs and the legislature should
focus on their jobs. This issue should be left up to school
boards. Finally, she said she has researched sone of Planned
Parent hood's prograns, such as the Get Real Program for mddle
school, and found them to be an evidence-based program She
listed its curriculum She concluded that schools want the best
resources for the | east anmpbunt of noney for students.

5:44:15 PM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -27- March 10, 2016



ED GRAY, representing hinmself, testified in support of SB 191.
He shared his experience as a parent with Planned Parenthood in
the Sitka School District. He said he is opposed to Planned
Par ent hood' s val ues and called them abortionists who pronote sex
and abortion. He said parents and certified teachers should
teach human sexuality. This is the law in six states and there
will be no | awsuits.

5:46: 42 PM

JULI E STRCEMER, representing herself, testified in support of SB
191. She maintained that other teachers can teach sex education.
She said Planned Parenthood is the nunber one provider of
abortion and their origin was in eugenics and genoci de.

5:48:34 PM

JAYSON CHRI STNER, representing herself, testified in support of
SB 191. He did not approve of Planned Parenthood as partners in
schools, but did support nedically accurate and unbiased sex
education for youth. He concluded that SB 191 will not ban sex
education in school s.

5:50: 04 PM

JOSHUA DECKER, Executive Director, Anmerican Givil Liberties
Union of Alaska, testified in opposition to SB 191. He said he
submtted witten testinony to the commttee on March 3. He
mai ntained that the bill is wunconstitutional. It seeks to
prevent anyone who works or volunteers in any capacity at any
hospi tal, clinic, or health centers where abortions are
performed from di scussing any topic in public schools. Not only
would the bill prevent a math teacher from volunteering on
Saturdays at a wonen's health center, it would prevent a student
from volunteering at all at hospitals. If a history teacher had
that student give an in-class presentation on President Lincoln,
the hospital would be fined $5,000 per student and the history
teacher would | ose their job.

MR. DECKER expl ai ned that the core constitutional deficiency in
the bill is that wunder the First Amendnent, the governnent
cannot punish teachers, students, health care professionals or
hospital s based on what they say outside of school or how they
spend their private lives. The constitution guarantee is that
the governnent cannot play favorites. Also, bills that restrict
access to abortion, which is legal, are unconstitutional and
expensive. He noted that Al aska has already spent nearly $1
mllion of taxpayer noney defending unconstitutional |aws Iike
SB 191.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 28- March 10, 2016



CHAI R DUNLEAVY said he replied to M. Decker's enmnil and asked
himif he had any ideas for inprovenents to the bill. He did not
know i f he received a response.

MR. DECKER said he did reply to the email and there is no way to
rehabilitate the bill. The state cannot prohibit people from
freely speaking or associating in their private lives outside of
school .

5:52:53 PM

HELEN CRAIG representing herself, testified in support of SB
191. She said her famly believes in the bible and in val ues.
She said she believes sex education should be taught in the
home. She said Pl anned Parenthood was teaching the kids to have
oral sex. She said doctors should not teach abortion in schools.

5:55:41 PM

Cl NDY MOORE, representing herself, testified in opposition to SB
91. She recalled that she and her husband worked extrenely hard
| ast year to get the Al aska Safe Children's Act passed in order
to protect all kids. She stated that SB 191 threatens crucial
education for all Alaska's children. It is being presented as a
bill to keep abortion providers out of schools because, as the
sponsor states, "this education is indoctrinating our students
and is comng into our schools and recruiting future clients."
She said this is an extrenely offensive statenent and fl at-out
fal se.

M5. MOORE related that current sex education curriculum has
nothing to do with abortion. It is about protecting kids and
keeping them safe from getting pregnant, contacting STD s and
STl's, and learning about healthy relationships. She enphasized
t hat Pl anned Parent hood does not teach abortion in our schools.
She said the provision for parents to "opt in instead of opt
out" is going to drastically reduce the nunber of teens
receiving this education. She said, "W cannot afford this.”
Al aska | eads the nation in STD s and ranks near the top for teen
pregnanci es.

She said she does not understand the purpose of the bill. She
stated that abortion is illegal in Alaska for mnors under 17
w thout parental consent or a court order. State |aw already
allows parents to opt out of any curriculum being taught in
public schools. Parents have 100 percent control over their
child s education. She pointed out that SB 191 does have a
fiscal inpact. It has a cost to hire teachers to teach sex
education instead of Planned Parenthood trainers, who are free.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 29- March 10, 2016



She asked the committed to consider the rights of teens to stay
safe and heal t hy.

5:58:17 PM

BUTCH MOORE, representing hinmself, testified in opposition to SB
191. He said the sponsor has grossly msrepresented Planned
Parenthood in saying abortion providers are educating Al aska's
children. He stated that Planned Parenthood educated his
daughters in Anchorage and they never nentioned abortion. He
said DOE says school districts can determne and control their
curriculum and the departnment is not aware of any school
district that nentions abortion anywhere in the state. He
likened the bill to liquor being sold in a grocery store. He
reiterated that Planned Parenthood has a small portion of their
business that provides abortions and they do not discuss
abortion in schools. He saw a bigger problem related to the
state's budget crisis and no need to address abortion bills
right now. He concluded that the bill is a personal vendetta and
it is wunconstitutional. He requested that the sponsor should
represent the people.

6: 01: 35 PM

PAMELA SAVASH, Menber, Right to Life, testified in support of SB
191. She nmintained that Planned Parenthood pronotes sex and
spreads diseases and she does not want it in schools. Sex
outside of marriage always has consequences. She said that
peopl e should pronote the bible, not Planned Parenthood. She
shared a story about an abortion and horror stories.

6: 04: 28 PM

DEBORAH POTTER, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She said legislation should focus on facts. The bill is
very likely wunconstitutional and wll Ilikely result in an

expensive legal battle that the state cannot afford. The
| egi sl ature should focus on the budget. She opposed guilt by
association found in the bill. She shared statistics about
STD s, teen pregnancy, and sexual assault.

DOROTHY MCA LVARY, representing herself, testified in support of
SB 191. She supports the blockage of Planned Parenthood in
school s. She shared horror stories about Planned Parenthood. She
suggested a nurse, parent, or teacher can discuss sex education
with youth. She said Planned Parenthood supports sexual activity
and abortion. She thought traditional values should be taught.
She advised to save sex for marriage, "Keep your |egs crossed
until you get married,"” and just say no.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 30- March 10, 2016



6:10: 45 PM

EM LY KOSTINA, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. She said she agrees with nmuch of the opposition to SB
191. She said the bill would ban her work as a nenber of Teen
Council. She concluded that she supports Planned Parenthood's
conpr ehensi ve education in schools.

6:12: 36 PM

STAN BLUETTE, representing hinself, testified in opposition to
SB 191. He spoke of his personal experience in a Planned
Par ent hood classes which began in fifth grade. He stated that
the cl asses were whol esonme and educational and he and nany ot her
Al askans need this education.

6:14:16 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY voi ced appreciation for all the testinonies. He
held SB 191 in comm ttee.

SENATOR GARDNER said she was inpressed by the students'
preparation, denmeanor, and courtesy during their testinonies.

[SB 191 was held in commttee.]
6:14: 53 PM
There being no further business to cone before the conmttee

Chair Dunl eavy adjourned the Senate Education Standing Conmittee
at 6:14 p. m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -31- March 10, 2016



